
Dinas a Sir Abertawe

Hysbysiad o Gyfarfod

Fe'ch gwahoddir i gyfarfod 

Panel Perfformiad Craffu - Gwasanaethau Plant a 
Theuluoedd

Lleoliad: Ystafell Bwyllgor 5 - Neuadd y Ddinas, Abertawe

Dyddiad: Dydd Llun, 30 Ebrill 2018

Amser: 4.00 pm

Cynullydd: Y Cynghorydd  Paxton Hood-Williams

Aelodaeth:
Cynghorwyr: C Anderson, M Durke, K M Griffiths, Y V Jardine, P K Jones, 
S M Jones, I E Mann, A Pugh a/ac D W W Thomas

Agenda
Rhif y Dudalen.

1  Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb.

2  Datgeliadau o fuddiannau personol a rhagfarnol.
www.abertawe.gov.uk/DatgeliadauBuddiannau

3  Nodiadau Cyfarfod 26 Chwefror 2018 1 - 4
Derbyn nodiadau’r cyfarfod blaenorol a chytuno eu bod yngofnod cywir

4  Cwestiynau'r Cyhoedd
Rhaid i gwestiynau fod yn berthnasol i faterion ar yr agenda ac 
ymdrinnir â nhw o fewn cyfnod o 10 munud.

5  Adroddiad Blynyddol Cwynion Gwasanaethau Plant a Theuluoedd 
2016/17

5 - 15

Andrew Taylor, Rheolwr Cwynion Corfforaethol

6  Monitro Perfformiad
Julie Thomas, Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Plant a Theuluoedd

7  Adolygiad o'r flwyddyn a chynllun ar gyfer y 12 mis nesaf yn y 
Pwyllgor Craffu Gwasanaethau Plant a Theuluoedd

16 - 18

Cyfarfod nesaf: Dydd Llun, 25 Mehefin 2018 ar 4.00 pm

http://www.abertawe.gov.uk/DatgeliadauBuddiannau


Huw Evans
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Democrataidd
Dydd Llun, 23 Ebrill 2018
Cyswllt: Liz Jordan 01792 637314



City and County of Swansea

Notes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel – Child & 
Family Services

Committee Room 5 - Guildhall, Swansea 

Monday, 26 February 2018 at 4.00 pm

Present: Councillor P R Hood-Williams (Chair) Presided

Councillor(s) Councillor(s) Councillor(s)
C Anderson M Durke K M Griffiths
Y V Jardine P K Jones I E Mann
A Pugh

Officer(s)
Owen Davies Performance Manager, Social Services
David Howes Chief Social Services Officer
Brij Madahar Scrutiny Team Leader
Rachel Moxey Head of Poverty & Prevention
Julie Thomas Head of Child & Family Services

Apologies for Absence
Councillor(s): S M Jones

1 Disclosure of Personal and Prejudicial Interests.

Disclosure of interests – Alyson Pugh.

2 Notes of previous meetings

The Panel agreed the notes as an accurate record of the meeting.

3 Public Question Time

No questions were asked.

4 Prevention and Early Intervention

Rachel Moxey, Head of Prevention and Early Intervention went through the report 
highlighting the main issues.

Panel was interested in how this work impacts on Child and Family Services and 
supported improvement.

Work was highlighted to tackle poverty and focus on prevention which would reduce 
demand for specialist services.  Examples were given of close working with Child 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel – Child & Family Services (26.02.2018)
Cont’d

and Family Services, including joint working on Family Support Commissioning 
Review.  Referred to specific activities to support children and families including 
young parents (Jigso), such as Flying Start and Team Around the Family in Schools, 
and support for young people not in education, employment or training. 

Family Support Continuum was mentioned and different tiers of support depending 
on needs and plans to develop a performance framework around that which will help 
to measure impact of interventions. 

A data set will be available in the future which could usefully supplement and support 
the Panel’s monitoring of Child and Family Services.  This would enable the Panel to 
see a bigger picture beyond just the activities that are under the control of Child and 
Family Services.

Chair acknowledged things were at an early stage and that the impact of this would 
be included as an item in next year’s work programme.

Some of the other aspects discussed included for example:
 Support for children with mental health issues, and role of Special Education 

Needs Coordinators and CAMHS
 The importance of early intervention to prevent problems from escalating. 
 Likely future funding levels to support early intervention and early help 

services – as a Welsh Government priority it was envisaged that such 
services would continue to be supported not cut nevertheless it would help if 
funding is committed on a more long-term basis than annually

 Leaving care services – support for children leaving residential care at 18 and 
transition to independent living or supported accommodation

 ‘Evolve’ services which cover all early help and support to young people and 
families between ages of 11 and 24, including NEETS.

Actions:
 Add ‘Impact of Early Intervention and Prevention as it relates to Child and 

Family Services’ to future work programme.
 

5 Performance Monitoring

Julie Thomas, Head of Child and Family Services, Owen Davies, Performance 
Manager and Dave Howes, Chief Social Services Officer attended to present the 
monthly performance report for January 2018 and third quarter performance for 
2017/18 and to answer the Panel’s questions.  

Panel noted there has not been any significant change from the previous month in 
terms of overall numbers.  It remained a generally healthy picture of performance. 

Positives:

 Still concerns over timeliness of assessment completion, but pleased to see 
improvements around assessment activity – 100% children seen, and a high 

Page 2



Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel – Child & Family Services (26.02.2018)
Cont’d

number seen alone – showing that the Signs of Safety practice framework is 
embedded

 All children subject to a child protection plan and those children experiencing care 
are allocated to a qualified worker

 Improved performance in the reviewing service
 Numbers of Looked After Children decreasing.

Concerns:

 Rise in the number of children being registered under the category of emotional 
harm

 Number of children placed in residential care reduced but more are being placed 
further afield

 Unusual trend in supervision in some of the case managing teams that will 
require investigation

 High level of re-referrals
 Young People transitioning to adulthood - high number of young people 

presenting as homeless.

A handout was provided showing 5 year caseload trend.  It is a challenge every year 
to reduce demand.  It was recognised that figures had plateaued to a manageable 
number since 2014/15.  

Another handout was provided showing Looked After Children rates per 10,000 5 
year trend – comparison with 4 other authorities.  It shows how Swansea has 
improved over last 5 years.  Swansea is doing reasonably ok though numbers have 
plateaued.  Engagement with early help services is key to sustainability of services 
for children and families and avoid people needing to come through the front door 
unless necessary.  

Child and Family Services in Swansea are recognised as innovative, such as Signs 
of Safety work, work done to upskill the workforce and the vision for CFS and the 
model.  There are innovative approaches in CFS such as employment of therapists, 
clinical psychologists within the service to better address needs and support children 
at home.  Too early to say if new approaches work.  

Panel only touched on the quarterly report due to time pressures.  Discussed Youth 
Offending Service performance – although performing well some concern about 2 
custodial sentences occurring.  Also discussed placement of Looked After Children – 
noted there are more out of county than in but robust arrangements in place to track 
and avoid drift.

Actions:

Information on absenteeism rates for CFS staff and information on LAC population 
by age and age ranges of new children becoming looked after to be included in 
performance monitoring report for next meeting in April.

Page 3



Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel – Child & Family Services (26.02.2018)
Cont’d

6 Work Programme Timetable 2017-18

Noted final meeting this municipal year on 30 April to discuss latest performance 
report and Panel’s end of year review

7 Letters

Letters received and considered by the Panel.  No issues arising.

The meeting ended at 5.52 pm

Page 4



Report of the Cabinet Member for Health & Wellbeing

 Child and Family Services Scrutiny Performance Panel – 30 
April 2018

Children Services Complaints Annual Report 2016-17 

Purpose To provide an overview of the social services complaints 
procedure and the work of the complaints team in this 
regard

Content This report includes a summary of the complaints 
received in respect of Children Services during the 
financial year 2016/17

Councillors are 
being asked to

Consider the report as part of their review of Children 
Services

Lead 
Councillor(s)

Cllr Mark Child – Cabinet Member for Health and 
Wellbeing

Lead Officer(s) Tracey Meredith – Head of Legal Democratic Services 
and Business Intelligence

Report Author Andrew Taylor 
Tel: 01792 637290
Email: andrew.taylor@swansea.gov.uk

Page 5

Agenda Item 5

mailto:andrew.taylor@swansea.gov.uk


APPENDIX 3

Report of the Cabinet Member for Service Transformation and Business Operations

Cabinet – 19 October 2017

CHILDRENS SERVICES COMPLAINTS 
ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017

Purpose: To report on the operation of the Complaints Team in 
relation to Childrens Services for the period 1 April 
2016 to 31 March 2017.  

Report Author: Andrew Taylor

Finance Officer: Julie Davies

Legal Officer: Tracey Meredith

Access to Services
Officer:

Sherill Hopkins

FOR INFORMATION

1.0 Introduction

1.1 The City and County of Swansea (CCS) Social Services Complaints 
Procedure seeks to empower service users or those eligible to speak on their 
behalf to voice their concerns in relation to the exercise of Social Services 
functions. 

1.2 With effect from 1 August 2014 revised legislation came into effect, bringing 
the Social Services complaints procedure into line with other complaints 
procedures across public services, in particular the process for NHS ‘Putting 
Things Right’. The Social Services Complaints Policy has been revised to 
accommodate the requirements of the new legislation and full details of the 
new policy can be viewed online at: www.swansea.gov.uk/complaints . The 
legislation requires the reporting of additional information which has been 
incorporated into this report.

1.2.1 CCS Childrens Services are committed to ensuring that concerns raised are 
listened to and resolved quickly and efficiently. Lessons learned from this 
process are fed back to relevant teams and used wherever possible to 
improve future service delivery.

1.4 Our aim is to resolve complaints at the earliest opportunity and teams are 
encouraged to be proactive in achieving this goal.

Page 6

http://www.swansea.gov.uk/complaints


1.5 Where someone has been deemed ‘not eligible’ to utilise the social services 
complaint procedure in accordance with guidance/legislation, their complaints 
may be dealt with under the corporate complaint procedure. This ensures that 
everyone is able to voice their concerns and that a complaints mechanism is 
accessible to everyone.

1.6 Appendix 1 contains all tables referred to in this report.

2. Total Complaints received during the reporting period

2.1 Table 1 shows this year’s total complaints received by the Complaint Team in 
respect of Childrens Services with the previous two years’ figures for 
comparison. 

2.2 The number of Stage 1 complaints received this year remains broadly in line 
in with last years’ figure. 

2.3 Under the Social Services complaints policy, both the old and new legislative 
framework allow complainants to immediately request a stage 2 investigation. 
Through efforts to resolve complaints internally wherever possible, the 
number of stage 2 complaints this year remains relatively low.

3. Analysis of Stage 1 Complaints 

3.1. A detailed breakdown of the Stage 1 Complaints received by Service Area is 
shown in Table 2. Complaints need to be acknowledged within 2 working 
days, and in 95% of cases where complaints proceeded to conclusion, 
discussions took place within 10 working days.

3.2 Complaints have been broken down by individual service team this year, in 
order to provide greater clarity on specific areas where complaints are being 
received. This will help with the identification of systemic issues and trends 
which can then be scrutinised more closely within those teams affected.

3.3 Due to continuing changes in the structure of Childrens Services it is possible 
that the teams shown below have since been reorganised and may no longer 
exist as the teams set out below. Adjustments will be made to the team 
names year on year as required to reflect any such changes.

4. Stage 2 Complaints

4.1 Complaints are considered at Stage 2 of the complaints procedure either 
where we have not been able to resolve the issues to the complainant’s 
satisfaction at stage 1, or the complainant has requested that the matter be 
immediately considered at Stage 2.  

Page 7



4.2 Both the old and new social services complaint regulations give an eligible 
complainant a statutory right to request Stage 2 of the process. Complainants 
are able to request that their complaint is dealt with directly at Stage 2 should 
they wish, and is not dependent on having been investigated at stage 1 or the 
outcome at stage 1.  

4.3 An independent investigator person is commissioned for a Stage 2 
investigation, with the work of the investigator overseen by an independent 
person to ensure the investigation is carried out in a fair and proper way. A 
formal report is produced which presents the facts and considers the feelings 
around the difficulties to suggest ways to move forward.  Resolution and 
applying lessons learned is the prime objective of the complaints procedure.

4.4 Table 3 provides a summary of the complaints handled at Stage 2 of the 
complaints process. 

4.5 The Social Services Complaints Procedure has set criteria as to who can 
raise a complaint under that policy.  Where an individual is not eligible to 
make a complaint under the Social Services complaints policy, their concerns 
will be handled through the Authority’s Corporate Complaints Procedure.  

4.6 The timeframe for dealing with Stage 2 complaints is 25 working days under 
the Social Services complaints policy, or within a reasonable time agreed with 
the complainant due to the complexity of a case or where enquiries could be 
extensive to provide a comprehensive review.  For complaints made after the 
implementation of the new regulations, where an extension of time is sought 
this will normally only be granted with the permission of the Chief Social 
Services Officer or other delegated officer on their behalf.  All investigations 
this year were subject to extended periods of time. 

4.7 Whether the complaint is upheld or not, staff need to reinstate confidence in a 
good working relationship with the service user or their representatives, to 
move forward following the formal Stage 2 Process.

4.8 There were 3 complaints received in this reporting period that went to 
investigation at Stage 2.  

4.9 Summary of Stage 2 complaints

4.15 Case 1: Looked After Children (LAC) Team: 8 out of 18 investigated 
complaints upheld / upheld in part

4.15.1 A number of complaints were received from a couple who felt they were not 
receiving sufficient support from Social Services, including poor 
communication from social workers and failures to respond to enquiries.

4.15.2 The investigation found that the support provided had not met the standard 
that would normally be expected and that communication should have been 
better. Apologies were provided for the shortcomings that were identified and 

Page 8



additional training provided to staff to ensure better support and 
communication would be provided in future.

4.16 Case 2: Swansea Valley Team: 0 out of 6 complaints upheld / upheld in 
part

4.16.1 The complainant was unhappy with the lack of communication from Social 
Services, including not being invited to meetings, failure to provide updates 
and not returning calls. 

4.16.2 There was evidence to show that the complainant had been invited to some 
meetings but not others. A full explanation was provided as to why attendance 
at those meetings to which he was not invited would not be appropriate.

4.17 Case 3: Swansea Valley Team: 7 out of 10 complaints upheld / upheld in 
part

4.17.1 A complaint was received concerning poor communication from a social 
worker, including failure to attending meetings as arranged and making last 
minute changes to contact arrangements on a number of occasions. It was 
also alleged that insufficient research had been carried out when determining 
suitable temporary accommodation for a child following a safeguarding 
referral.

4.17.2 Officers have been reminded of the importance of keeping clients updated at 
the earliest opportunity when meeting arrangements need to be changed. The 
team has been asked to reflect on all areas where failings have been 
identified to ensure lessons are learned and operational procedures are 
improved. 

5.0 Complaints made to the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (PSOW)

5.1 The remit of the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales is to identify whether 
a member of the public has suffered hardship or injustice through 
maladministration, or identify where services have fallen below a reasonable 
standard.  There is an obligation for a report to be produced on any 
investigation the office accepts.  The reports produced are defined under two 
separate headings.  Section 16 (Public Interest) Reports, for which there is a 
requirement for the Authority to publish details and Section 21 Investigation 
Reports which do not need to be published. Further details of the role of the 
PSOW can be found at http://www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk 

5.2 The PSOW has produced his Annual Report for 2016/17, containing details of 
cases where the Ombudsman has identified failures in service delivery by 
public bodies across Wales. There have been no findings of maladministration 
by the Ombudsman in relation to Swansea Children’s Services this year. 

Page 9

http://www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk/


The Ombudsman’s report can be seen online at http://www.ombudsman-
wales.org.uk/en/publications/Annual-reports.aspx 

6. Reasons for complaints and their outcome

6.1 Further analysis of the reasons for complaints is shown in Table 4. Whilst 
service users have unique and complex individual circumstances, complaints 
have been grouped under ‘best fit’ generic headings for reporting purposes.

6.2 Wherever possible, lessons are learned and improvements are made to 
service delivery when a complaint is upheld. 19% of complaints were found to 
be justified/partly justified this year, which is slightly lower than the equivalent 
figure for 2015/16 (25%). 

7. Advocacy

7.1 Advocacy services exist to represent children’s views and feelings when 
dealing with organisations.  Social Services engage in statutory arrangements 
to ensure the welfare of clients with mental health and learning disability 
needs where capacity is compromised and provide signposting to other 
organisations providing such services.  

7.2 The Complaints Officer will work with groups and organisations providing 
advocacy services, to address issues and promote the provision of assistance 
to service-users through the complaints process. Effective engagement with 
advocacy services empowers more individuals and groups to make use of the 
complaints process at the earliest opportunity.

8.0 Compliments

8.1 Adult Services have received in excess of 50 compliments over the course of 
the year. Set out in Table 5 are some examples of the compliments which 
have been passed to the complaints team this year in relation to Childrens 
Services.  The individual staff members have been made aware of the 
compliments concerning them as has the Head of Service.

8.2 As well as substantial acknowledgements of thanks from service users that 
are given to staff at the point of service delivery, service users, relatives or 
friends can convey their appreciation more formally through the Comment or 
Compliment process.

8.3 Many complaints are often accompanied by compliments for other elements 
of service provision. 

8.4 Compliments received are an equal reflection of individual and team efforts 
and Childrens Services teams should be encouraged by their successes 
having regard to compliments received.

Page 10

http://www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk/en/publications/Annual-reports.aspx
http://www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk/en/publications/Annual-reports.aspx


9. Equality and Engagement Implications 

9.1 There are no direct equality and engagement implications arising from this 
report.

10. Financial Implications

10.1 All costs incurred in dealing with complaints have to be covered within existing 
Budgets in Corporate Services.

10.2 External Independent Investigators and Independent Persons may be 
appointed to deal with some complaints in accordance with legislation.  The 
cost to the Authority of providing this service in 2016/17 for Childrens Services 
was £3,165 

11. Legal Implications 

11.1 Complaints have be administered in accordance with the regulations outlined 
in paragraph 1.2 above.

Background papers: None

Appendices: Appendix 1 – Statistical Data Tables

Page 11



Appendix 1 – Statistical data inTables

Table 1 -  Total number of complaints received by Complaint Team
Year 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Service Requests 14 18 16
Corporate 19 21 28
Social Services Stage 1 150 115 118
Social Services Stage 2 12 3 3
Ombudsman 6 5 4
Totals 204 162 169

Table 2 – Total Stage 1 complaints by Service Area
CCARAT 8
Child Care Legal 1
Child Disability Team 3
Conference Chairing 2
Contracting 1
Domiciliary Care (DCAS) 1
Foster Swansea 1
Friends & Family 2
Independent Reviewing Officers 2
Looked After Children 4
Looked After Children (14+) 1
Penderry Team 13
Swansea East Team 21
Swansea Valley Team 23
Swansea West Team 19
Townhill Team 15
SS General 1
Totals 118

Table 3 – Total Stage 2 complaints by Service Area
Service Outcome ID

Looked After Children (LAC) Team
8 / 18 complaints 
justified

Case 1 
(see paragraph 

4.15 above)

Swansea Valley Team
0 / 7 complaints 
justified

Case 2
(see paragraph 

4.16 above)

Swansea Valley Team
7 / 10 complaints 
justified

Case 3
(see paragraph 

4.17 above)

Page 12



    
Table 4

Reason for Complaints and 
their outcome

No
. o

f C
om

pla
int

s

Ju
sti

fie
d

No
t J

us
tifi

ed

Pa
rtia

lly
 Ju

sti
fie

d

No
t P

ur
su

ed

No
t E

lig
ibl

e

W
ith

dr
aw

n

Re
fer

 to
 S

afe
gu

ar
din

g

Lo
ca

l R
es

olu
tio

n

Im
pa

ss
e

Co
nc

ur
re

nt 
Inv

es
tig

ati
on

Di
re

cte
d t

o a
no

the
r f

or
um

Fo
r I

nfo
rm

ati
on

 O
nly

Ma
tte

r in
 co

ur
t

De
pa

rtm
en

t to
 ac

tio
n /

 m
on

ito
r

No
t ta

ke
n u

p

Ou
t o

f r
em

it

Es
ca

lat
ed

 to
 S

tag
e 2

Breach of confidentiality 2 1 1
Child protection concerns 2 1 1
Disagree with rules set 1 1
Dissatisfaction with contact 5 3 1 1
Dissatisfaction with assessment 3 1 1 1
Excessive waiting time 1 1
Failure to action information 1 1
Financial issues / Direct Payments 1 1
Inadequate home support 1 1
Lack of consultation
Lack of support 2 1 1
Poor Communication 11 3 1 2 3 2
Request for information 1 1
Request for placement move 1 1
Staff Attitude / Misconduct 1 1
Unhappy with  action taken 64 2 21 8 9 5 2 2 1 2 2 6 2 1 1
Unhappy with assessment
Unhappy with decision 7 3 2 1 1
Unhappy with level of service 13 3 5 1 1 1 1 1
Unhappy with response 1 1

TOTALS 118 11 34 11 16 8 4 4 3 1 2 1 5 10 2 3 1 2
 

Table 5 – Examples of Compliments Received
Teams Nature of Compliment

P
age 13



CCARAT Social workers and Team Leaders praised by Home Office/Oasis UK regarding the management of an 
Asylum seeker to Swansea.  

CCARAT Team 
(Safeguarding)

Could I compliment your service on such a swift response.
Please send this to whichever department deals with compliments as I am very impressed by the service I 
have received.

Child & Family Praise from Swansea Asylum Seeker and Refugee agency, the  key Welsh Refugee Council Move On 
Officer in Swansea (who has worked with other local authorities) praised Social Services and Housing in 
CCS for their rapid response, support, help and approachable manner that she has experienced whilst 
working with the services. 

Family Group 
Conference unit 

The judge was very complimentary of officers work in respect of the analysis, and evidence given (which 
took 6 hours!) and about the focus on the child’s needs. 

Flexible Home 
Support 

1.  Thank you card from family 
2. Thank you card from family thanking for all the fun times the child had spent with them and he enjoyed 
this very much 
3. Thank you card from family for all the support that they had provided them with. 

Friends and 
Family 

Carer was very appreciative of, and wanted to pass on thanks to worker for providing the ‘most 
professional…structured’ contact recording that she has received to date.  Carer felt reassured that child’s 
emotional safety was being considered and protected and that she as legal guardian was given a detailed 
and full context recording of the session.

Independent 
Reviewing 
Officers

Feedback from a Childrens Psychiatric Nurse who attended a Looked After Child review. The CPN had 
been involved in this case for some time, said she was very impressed with how the IRO chaired the 
meeting, ensuring mother’s involvement in the process and  innovative ideas about contact arrangements. 
She said the focus was very much on ensuring needs were met, which I know are complex, Clearly she 
was exercising your role as IRO to a very high standard to really drive the care plan.

Option 2 Compliment from a foster carer to worker:
“Just to say that I really enjoyed working with you and I would HIGHLY recommend you because you are 
really effective and willing to go above & beyond to stand out and go the extra mile. I’m sure many families 
in similar situations as ours would benefit in the future from your help. 

P
age 14



RAY Project – 
InfoNation

Positive feedback from school regarding the successful delivery of the Ray project, the children engaged 
brilliantly and another session was requested. 

Supervised 
contact Team 

From a child. Thank you, you’re simply amazing.  Thank you for all your guidance and support over the 
last six months we are going to miss you.

Transportation 
Unit 

Compliment from a school : “I am just letting you know what a wonderful day ‘A’ had in Harry Potter 
yesterday, only made possible by you and your staff . I just want to thank you from everybody, including 
A’s Mum for pulling out all the stops to make this happen, and on his birthday as well. We weren’t quite 
sure how Jack would be as it is a long day, but we needn’t have worried as the drivers were brilliant and 
made it possible for the staff and pupils just to sit back and enjoy a day that we will all never forget “ 

Valley Team Email from Head Teacher thanking for the excellent communication from Social Worker to school.  it has 
made a very difficult set of circumstances go as smoothly as could be hoped.

Valley Team Following the granting of a Supervision Order, A Social Worker’s efforts were recognised and praised by 
all the parties in Court and the guardian commented in his report: ‘Likewise, the social worker has been an 
important catalyst in the process and her caring, professional approach has made an important 
contribution to the outcome for M.
 

West Team Thank you text from mum to social worker who had closed the case. Mum thanked social worker for 
helping the family a lot and wouldn’t hesitate to contact her again should she have any further difficulties. 

Western Bay 
Adoption 

Compliments from Adopters:-
 Thank you from the bottom of our hearts for helping us to become a family and also for all of your 

support and Guidance.
 We would like to thank you so much for all your help our little boy has brought so much joy to our lives

P
age 15



Child and Family Services Scrutiny Performance Panel 
Summary of the Year 2017/18

Could Panel members have a think about the following questions in relation to their 
year on the CFS Scrutiny Performance Panel in readiness for the discussion at the 
Panel?

1. What has gone well?

2. What has not gone so 
well?

3. Has the Panels work 
programme been focused 
on the right things?

4. What have we learned that 
will help us with future 
CFS scrutiny? 

Summary of the Year 2017 – 2018

See below a summary of the year of activity carried out by the CFS Scrutiny 
Performance Panel

1. Work of the Panel this year
Topics suggested for scrutiny by Councillors, the public and officers for the year 
2017/18 and whether they were completed by the panel are detailed as follows

 Overview of Child and Family Services in Swansea
 Role of CFS Panel including Terms of Reference and Draft Work Programme
 Performance Monitoring including adoption and Youth Offending Service, 

absenteeism, vacancies and agency workers
 Pre-decision scrutiny of Family Support Services Commissioning Review – 

Focusing of Children with Additional Needs and Disabilities
 Advocacy Update
x Child Disability update
 Draft Budget proposals for CFS
 Prevention and Early Intervention
 Complaints Annual Report for CFS 2016/17
x Corporate Parenting Board report

Page 16

Agenda Item 7



2. Data monitoring in 2017/18
Item monitored over the year:
 Monthly performance report July 2017
 Monthly performance report September 2017
 Second quarter performance report 2017/18
 Performance and progress of Western Bay Regional Adoption Service
 Performance and progress on Leaving Care System
 Monthly performance report January 2018
 Third quarter performance report 2017/18

Performance reports going to April 2018 meeting?

Planning for the year ahead 2018/19

See below some items that can be scheduled for the coming year:

1. Some issues the panel identified but did not get chance to look at or require 
ongoing monitoring at present.  These can be can be referred onto the new 
municipal year
 Impact of Prevention and Early Intervention in relation to CFS
 Corporate Parenting Board report
 Child disability update

2. Annual items to be scheduled for the new municipal year
 Monthly performance reports for CFS
 Quarterly performance reports for CFS
 Corporate Complaints Annual Report for CFS 2017/18 (Feb 19)
 Scrutiny of annual budget as it relates to CFS matters (Feb 19)

Other background information
 Number of times the CFS Scrutiny Performance Panel has met =  7 
 Number of CFS related Conveners letters =  5 (not including April meeting)
 Councillor attendance across the Panel on average =  62% (not including April 

meeting)

Page 17



DRAFT

CHILD & FAMILY SERVICES SCRUTINY PERFORMANCE PANEL
WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19

Meeting 1
Monday 25 June 
2018

4pm

Impact of Prevention and Early Intervention on CFS 
(under 11 and over 11 services)

Work Programme 2018/19

Meeting 2
Tuesday 28 August 
2018

4pm

Performance Monitoring 

Adoption Update

Advocacy Update

Meeting 3
Monday 29 October 
2018

4pm

Report on 16 plus (BAYS) / Youth Offending 
Services 

Meeting 4
Tuesday 18 
December 2018

4pm

Corporate Parenting Board update (5 leads to be 
invited)

Performance Monitoring

Additional meeting
? February 2019 
(date tbc)

Draft budget proposals for Child and Family 
Services

Cabinet Member presentation and Q and A session

Meeting 5
Monday 25 
February 2019

4pm

CFS Complaints Annual Report 2017-18

Child Disability update

Meeting 6
Monday 29 April 
2019

4pm

Performance Monitoring

End of year review

Page 18


	Agenda
	3 Nodiadau Cyfarfod 26 Chwefror 2018
	5 Adroddiad Blynyddol Cwynion Gwasanaethau Plant a Theuluoedd 2016/17
	Childrens Services Complaints Annual Report 2016.17

	7 Adolygiad o'r flwyddyn a chynllun ar gyfer y 12 mis nesaf yn y Pwyllgor Craffu Gwasanaethau Plant a Theuluoedd
	Draft CFS work programme 2018-2019


